
PLANNING BOARD 
TOWN OF PETERBOROUGH, New Hampshire 

 
Minutes of March 14, 2011 

 
Members Present: Chairman Leandra MacDonald, Michael Henry and Rick Monahon. 
 
Also Present:  Laura Norton, Office of Community Development Administrative Assistant, and 
Mose Olenik, Chairman of the Master Plan Steering Committee. 
 
The Peterborough Planning Board held its regular monthly meeting on March 14, 2011 in the 
Selectmen’s Meeting Room of the Town House. Chair MacDonald noted at 7:00 p.m. that there 
was not a quorum but that the members could still discuss the Regional Concerns Chapter. 
 
Chair MacDonald began by noting the 2008 Regional Population Graph on Chapter page 11-3. 
This graph notes that Peterborough is one of the three towns (Peterborough, New Ipswich and 
Rindge) in the region that has population that far exceed the neighboring towns. “Where is 
Jaffrey?” she asked. She added “Jaffrey is not in Hillsborough County but neither is Rindge 
(located in Cheshire County) “so we need to put it in” she said. Chair MacDonald also noted the 
recent census and that the graphic should be updated with current populations as soon as the data 
is available.  
 
The members moved on to the Public Safety section of the Chapter. Ms. Olenik noted that she 
(along with Sue Chollet and Peter Gosline) worked on this portion. She noted “they (Police) are 
busy dealing with their everyday stuff, how they deal regionally is pretty much just what it is, 
when it is.”    
 
Chair MacDonald asked about specialty jailing and what the term meant. Mr. Monahon noted 
that some of the smaller towns do not have jails, “no place to lock up people” adding “you have 
to have a legal jail so they are transferred to Peterborough or Jaffrey for lock up.” Further 
discussion followed with Ms. Olenik adding “this came up way back when” adding “I think the 
concern is that there is no protective space for female or juvenile offenders.” Chair MacDonald 
interjected “so Jaffrey and Peterborough have jails cells but only for men?” Mr. Monahon noted 
that he had reviewed the standards for the jail cells “and they did not call for special 
accommodations years ago when they were designed.” The members briefly discussed the 
potential of a Municipal Facilities Complex and secure areas for females and juveniles. 
 
Chair MacDonald went on to ask about the bulleted item “what about areas of cooperation 
between police, fire, and ambulance in the region?” “That is not a sentence” she said. The 
members briefly discussed regional cooperation amongst public safety officials. Chair 
MacDonald interjected “I don’t know where this sentence fragment is going; I just want it to be a 
sentence.” A brief discussion about the item followed with Ms. Olenik suggesting the item be 
deleted, “It is really answered in Future issues for consideration” she said. Chair MacDonald 
interjected “or make it a bullet under that section rather than delete it.” 
 



Planning Board Minutes                        March 14, 2011                               Page 2 of 3 

Chair MacDonald went on to note “there is good information in the Fire & Rescue chapter” but 
added “I have a problem with the Need for Regional Marketing section.” She identified the 
section as Chapter page 11-7 and asked “does this mean regional marketing of jobs?” A brief 
discussion about the hiring process followed. One member asked “and like the Police are they so 
busy with everyday things that there is no cooperative effort to look for new employees?” Chair 
MacDonald noted “the problem is that it doesn’t say anything about the heading in the 
paragraph.” Mr. Henry suggested that information be put in a personnel recruitment section. 
Chair MacDonald also suggested the members take out the words “It is not anyone’s fault” under 
this section as well as “It is no one’s fault, just a sign of the times” in the next section, Regional 
Manned Stations. 
 
The members moved on to Chapter page 11-9 where Chair MacDonald asked about the fourth 
bulleted item. She especially asked about a potential cause and effect with the last three lines 
“Also, there is less interest on the part of younger people to become EMTs as the need for new 
skills for advanced technology increases.” After further discussion a member asked about the 
Explorer Program as a source of young volunteers. Another asked “can we go back to the Chief 
for clarification on this?” 
 
The members reviewed their thoughts and requested the subcommittee re-write the EMT and 
Emergency Management sections to reflect the current situation. They also asked for greater 
clarification about Regional Marketing and the Explorer Program. Chair MacDonald added “and 
I would like to know more about the Automatic Mutual Aid Agreement.” 
 
On Chapter page 11-10 Chair MacDonald pointed out a typo in the first line (joint should be 
joined). 
 
On Chapter page 11-11 there was a discussion about a rewrite of the last paragraph and the fact 
that the New Water Treatment Plant was a reality. They also had a brief discussion about the 
protection of well heads and a better map to review where gravity sewer could be extended.  
 
On Chapter page 11-14 Chair MacDonald point out a typo (affects should be affect) and that 
lawns should be added to the list of non-point source pollutions listed on the page.  
 
On Chapter page 11-16 Chair MacDonald noted “we are not currently addressing work force 
housing” adding “the Board should address this gap through an amendment to the zoning 
ordinance.” A brief discussion about the goals for work force housing followed. This discussion 
included boarding houses, what a boarding house would be in the modern context and more 
affordable and cooperative living. The members noted and discussed the 80 Pine Street 
apartment house as an example. Referencing SRO (Single Room Occupancy) Mr. Monahon 
noted “I got myself through numerous living circumstances, renting a room with a shared 
kitchen.” Chair MacDonald replied “I don’t have a problem putting it back in, that is OK, but 
let’s define it.” The members agreed the issue should come before the Planning Board to create 
zoning to meet those types of congregate living needs. Chair MacDonald concluded the 
discussion by noting “we should research what a boarding house is. What would the parameters 
be to create an affordable housing model?” 
 



Planning Board Minutes                        March 14, 2011                               Page 3 of 3 

On Chapter page 11-18 Chair MacDonald noted a typo (traveled should be travel). She also 
suggested they remove “In sum” from the beginning of the second paragraph. 
 
On Chapter page 11-19 Chair MacDonald noted a typo (amongst should be among). 
 
In conclusion Chair MacDonald noted “we’ll do a little work on these things” asking “can we 
ask Chief Lenox to come in and talk to us about the Explorer Program, the EMT staffing, and the 
Regional Marketing paragraph?” She noted “we want to understand where we are before we put 
this out.” Chair MacDonald’s final comment on the chapter review was “and we need a new 
population table.” Mr. Henry volunteered to follow up on that item. Ms. Olenik noted she had 
seen census numbers in the newspaper just a few weeks ago.  
 
Chair MacDonald noted there would be no workshop in March and asked that Chief Lenox 
attend their regularly scheduled April meeting if possible. She also noted the Master Plan 
Steering Committee should be invited. 
 
Chair MacDonald concluded the meeting by reminding the members that the Master Plan needs 
to be reviewed and assigned the homework of reading over Chapter One noting “we have some 
things that have been accomplished, this is more of an edit to see where updates need to come.” 
 
Ms. Olenik gave the members a brief update on the Cultural Resources Chapter of the Master 
Plan noting “it is getting close to coming before the Master Plan Steering Committee, it is a good 
piece of work, everything in it is good information.” 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:14 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Laura Norton,  
Administrative Assistant 
 


	PLANNING BOARD
	TOWN OF PETERBOROUGH, New Hampshire
	Minutes of March 14, 2011
	Also Present:  Laura Norton, Office of Community Development Administrative Assistant, and Mose Olenik, Chairman of the Master Plan Steering Committee.

